
2008-0802 1291 Brookings Lane  Approved Minutes 
  October 27, 2008 
  Page 1 of 3 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES OF OCTOBER 27, 2008 
 
2008-0802 – Applicant appeal of a Denial by the Administrative Hearing Officer for a 
Variance from Sunnyvale Municipal Code section 19.46.060 to allow interior 
modifications to the floor plan of an existing home which would result in less than the 
required 2 covered parking spaces. The property is located at 1291 Brookings Lane 
(near Belleville Wy.) in an R-0 (Low Density Residential) Zoning District. (APN: 320-29-
050) RK 
 
Ryan Kuchenig, Associate Planner, presented the staff report. He said staff was 
unable to make the findings and recommends the Commission deny the appeal and 
uphold the decision of the Administrative Hearing Officer and deny the Variance. 
 
Chair Rowe opened the public hearing. 
 
Leilani Honma, appellant, introduced her mother-in-law Lusako Honma who resides in 
the home with Honma family. Ms. Honma said her mother-in-law is the reason they are 
requesting the Variance. Ms. Honma said she wanted to clarify a few items in the 
report. She referred to page 3 and said that the existing setback on the right side of 
their property is 6 feet is not 5 feet so they actually meet the requirement. Ms. Honma 
addressed the findings, and said the only space to build an accessible bathroom is in 
the garage space. She referred to Attachment C, page 2 and described the layout of the 
existing first floor. She said staff has recommended alternative designs, which she said 
do not work for their family. She said a couple of the suggested alternatives would result 
in financial hardship for their family and would further delay the process. She said that if 
the intent and purpose of the ordinance is to preserve street parking that they would be 
able to provide four parking spaces on driveway and one covered space, referring to 
Attachment D page 6.  She said they also have signatures from 25 households in 
neighborhood supporting the approval of this project. She said they are requesting this 
Variance be approved as they are trying to provide basic physical and medical needs 
for her mother-in-law as they would like her to be as independent as possible. She said 
by approving the Variance she would be able to have a private handicapped accessible 
bathroom for her safety and for the safety of their children as she takes a lot of 
medication. She said she hopes the Commission would approve this Variance to 
accommodate their family’s medical and safety needs. She said as the population of 
Sunnyvale ages there will be greater need for home modifications. She said she hopes 
the Commission will be forward thinking and choose to protect the safety and quality of 
life for aging residents over the needs for covered parking and street parking. 
 
Comm. Sulser said he was listening to Ms. Honma’s presentation and commented that 
the Commission is required to meet all three findings shown in Attachment A. He asked 
the appellant to address the portion of Finding three regarding how granting the 
Variance would not be granting any special privileges that are not enjoyed by other 



2008-0802 1291 Brookings Lane  Approved Minutes 
  October 27, 2008 
  Page 2 of 3 
 
surrounding property owners within the same zoning district. Ms. Honma said that the 
special privilege enjoyed by other residents that is not enjoyed by her mother-in-law is 
the use of a bathroom and a shower. Comm. Sulser said the Variance request is for the 
parking. She said they can provide five spaces on the property and have signatures 
from the neighbors stating that they do not have a problem with the street parking.  
 
Comm. Klein commented to the appellant about an alternative proposal that staff made 
regarding redoing the laundry room and the half-bath. He asked Ms. Honma about the 
size of the proposed bathroom. Ms. Honma referred to Attachment C, page 6 which 
shows the size of the bathroom. She said the ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) 
requires a 5 foot diameter turning radius. She said the laundry room alternative does 
not work for their family as the children would have access to the bathroom. She said 
they would like the bathroom to only be accessible from her mother-in-law’s bedroom as 
a safety precaution due to the many medications her mother-in-law takes. Ms. Honma 
said that the laundry room would not provide enough space as they would still need to 
provide access from the house to the garage. She said that using child safety locks on 
the bathroom would not work as her mother-in-law does not have enough hand strength 
to turn the special knobs. Comm. Klein said one of staff’s other proposals was to build 
into the family room and asked Ms. Honma to comment. Ms. Honma said that they 
would have to move load-bearing walls for that alternative, which would be too costly. 
 
Vice Chair Chang asked staff about one of the alternatives that was suggested on 
page 6 of the report regarding the bathroom being located partially within the laundry 
room area and asked if the alternative would allow an ADA compliant bathroom. Mr. 
Kuchenig said staff talked to the architect about the alternative and staff said that the 
alternative could result in an ADA compliant bathroom, but the applicant felt the 
alternative would be cost prohibitive.  
 
Chair Rowe discussed with staff a different alternative describing her suggestion. Trudi 
Ryan, Planning Officer, said she is not sure if the alternative had been discussed. Ms. 
Ryan said various alternatives were discussed with the architect. Chair Rowe and staff 
further discussed the layout of the bathroom and other possible suggestions regarding 
the project. 
 
Comm. McKenna asked the appellant if the reason they did not want to move the 
bathroom from the garage to the laundry room was because they would lose access to 
the garage from the house. They appellant said she thought the code required access 
to the garage. Comm. McKenna asked staff to comment. Ms. Ryan said she does not 
believe there is a code requirement requiring access from the garage to the house. 
Comm. McKenna confirmed with the appellant that another concern is that her mother-
in-law would not have access to the laundry room if the laundry room was moved to the 
garage. Comm. McKenna confirmed with the appellant that borrowing space from the 



2008-0802 1291 Brookings Lane  Approved Minutes 
  October 27, 2008 
  Page 3 of 3 
 
family room and the garage to make the bathroom would require going through two 
load-bearing walls. 
 
Chair Rowe closed the public hearing. 
 
Comm. Klein moved for Alternative 1 to deny the appeal and uphold the decision 
of the Administrative Hearing Officer to deny the Variance. Comm. Sulser 
seconded the motion. 
 
Comm. Klein said he understands the appellant’s issues, however he said he could not 
make the finding of extraordinary circumstance. He said there are issues with the site 
layout and he feels that there are alternatives for moving walls around.  He said, from a 
City standpoint the Commission tries to make projects fair to all people, which includes 
two covered and two uncovered parking spaces per site.  He said there is a lot that can 
be done to meet the requirements.  He said he does not think the City rules can be 
negated as the findings are not met. He said he thinks there are alternatives so he 
cannot support this Variance request.   
 
Comm. Sulser said he came to the same conclusions as Comm. Klein. He said the 
Commission needs to be able to make the three findings to grant a Variance and said 
that he was unable to meet the third finding. He said he would be supporting the motion.  
 
Comm. McKenna said she would not be supporting the motion. She said, looking at the 
property, location and parking that there are many people who have covered parking 
and do not use this space for parking. She said she thinks she understands why the 
appellant is asking for this as it would be the least disruptive design for the family and   
would be the simplest thing for the appellant to accomplish their goal. She said that she 
does not think it would be detrimental to the neighborhood.  
 
Chair Rowe said she would be supporting the motion. She said she cannot make the 
findings. She said she is concerned about a precedence being set and said that the 
picture with the four cars in driveway looked like a mass meeting. She suggested the 
applicant get in touch with El Camino Hospital as they have a program for working with 
elderly parents who need assistance as they may have some good ideas to help. 
 
ACTION: Comm. Klein made a motion on 2008-0802 to deny the appeal and 
uphold the decision of the Administrative Hearing Officer and deny the Variance. 
Comm. Sulser seconded. Motion carried, 6-1, Comm. McKenna dissenting.  

 
APPEAL OPTIONS: This action is final unless appealed to the City Council no 
later than November 11, 2008. 


